MINISTRY OF EDUCATION AND SCIENCE OF UKRAINE NATIONAL AVIATION UNIVERSITY

Faculty of Transport, Management and Logistics Logistics Department

AGREED

Dean of the Faculty of Transport,

Management and Logistics

Tetyana MOSTENSKA

om 09 2023

APPROVED Vice-Rector for Academics

Anatolly POLUKHIN

(05) 09 2023



Quality Management System

PRE-DIPLOMA PRACTICE PROGRAM

Educational Professional Program: «Logistics»

Field of study:

07 «Management and Administration»

Specialty:

-073 «Management»

Mode of study	Year of study	Semester	Total (hours/ ECTS credits)	Self-study	Form of semester control
Full-time	2	3	225 / 7,5	225	Graded Test – 3 s.

Index: ECM-7-073-3/22-2.2.1

QMS NAU TP 19.05-01-2023



Document Code QMS NAU TP 19.05-01-2023

page 2 of 17

Pre-diploma practice Program is developed on the basis of Master Extended Curriculum No. CM-7-073-3/22 approved 30.09.2022 for Specialty 073 «Management» Educational Professional Program "Logistics"

Developed by:

Doctor of Economics.

Professor of the Logistics Department

Svitlana SMERICHEVSKA

Senior Lecturer

Myroslava SEMERIAHINA

Ph.D. in Economics,

Associate Professor of the Logistics Department

Oksana POZNIAK

Discussed and approved by the Graduate Department for Specialty 073 "Management", Educational Professional Program "Logistics" – Logistics Department, Minutes No. 15 of 28.08.2023.

Guarantor of the Educational

Professional Program,

Acting Head of the Logistics Department

_Svitlana SMERICHEVSKA

Vice Rector on International Collaboration and Education

Iryna ZARUBINSKA

0/» 09 2023

Document level – 3b
The Planned term between revisions – 1 year
Master copy



Document Code QMS NAU TP 19.05-01-2023

page 3 of 17

CONTENTS

1. Information about the specialty and the Educational Professional Program (nereinafter -
EPP)	4
2. Information about the practice bases	5
3. Objectives of practice	5
4. Purpose of pre-diploma practice	6
5. General competencies acquired by a higher education seeker as a result of	pre-diploma
practice	6
6. Professional competences acquired by a higher education seeker as a re	sult of pre-
diploma practice	7
7. Organization of pre-diploma practice	8
8. Thematic plan of Pre-diploma practice	8
9. Results of Pre-diploma practice	9
9.1. Learning outcomes of Pre-diploma practice makes it possible to achieve	9
9.2. Information on the procedure for summarizing the Pre-diploma practice	10
9.3. Form of Reporting	10
10. List of references	11
11. Form of assessment of the Pre-diploma practice in accordance with the Reg	gulations on
the Rating system of evaluation	13
Appendix A	15



Document Code QMS NAU TP 19.05-01-2023

page 4 of 17

1. Information about the specialty and the Educational and Professional program (hereinafter - EPP)

The field of professional activity of "Management" specialists is making rational management decisions in socio-economic systems with the use of effective methods, techniques and technologies.

EPP "Logistics" is focused on the training of effective managers with a logistic style of thinking, capable of quickly and rationally solving complex problems in non-standard situations arising in the field of logistics in various branches of the economy at both the micro- and macro-levels of management, as well as capable use modern logistics technologies, methods and innovative approaches to substantiate strategic decisions regarding the formation of perfect and competitive supply chains.

The specialty of the educational and professional program "Logistics" is: innovativeness and creativity, the use of author's developments of the teachers of the Department of Logistics, international and domestic methods of optimizing logistics business processes, modern information systems and technologies in logistics activities, established communications with the business environment on the terms of social partnership.

The goal of the educational and professional program "Logistics" is to train highly professional specialists of the new generation, managers for the field of logistics and supply chain management of the world level with systemic and critical thinking, capable of making effective management decisions in non-standard and crisis conditions, generating and implementing innovations in the management of logistics business processes and integrated supply chains, to carry out scientific research in the field of logistics and logistical support for the development of individual enterprises of various branches and the national economy as a whole, to comprehensively solve practical problems and complex professional tasks on the optimization of logistics business processes at both micro and at the macro levels of management.

The program provides in-depth practical training, active involvement of practitioners in the educational process, conducting scientific research at the micro and/or macro levels, fluency in the state and foreign languages with the possibility of studying in English, as well as internships abroad.

The difference of the program from others is the formation of professional competencies according to international standards (European Logistics Association, CSCMP, FIATA) with the subsequent possibility of obtaining relevant professional certificates.



Document QMS NAU
Code TP 19.05-01-2023

page 5 of 17

2. Information about practice bases

The bases of pre-diploma practice can be enterprises and their structural subdivisions, the staff of which implements logistics functions and activity tasks provided for a specialist in the "Logistics" OPP. Most often, these are: logistics companies, logistics providers, transport companies, transport and forwarding companies, manufacturing and trading enterprises, distributors related to the implementation of logistics processes in their activities.

3. Objectives of practice

During pre-diploma practice, higher education seekers conduct a study of the organization of logistics business processes at the enterprise, identify shortcomings and propose solutions to solve these shortcomings, check the proposed proposals in practice, clarify them, receive feedback from the managers of the enterprise on the completed research, make additions, draw up the relevant sections qualification work. Processing of materials from economic, mathematical and statistical studies is carried out using computer technology. In this way, higher education seekers develop the skills that a graduate of a higher educational institution with the Master's educational qualification of the "Logistics" EPP should possess.

After completing the pre-diploma practice, higher education seeker submits the first versions of the analytical and project parts of the qualification work to the academic supervisor of the department. These parts should have a logical, evidential, argumentative nature and contain:

- the organizational and economic characteristics of the enterprise at which the applicant is undergoing practice;
 - in-depth comprehensive analysis of the researched problem by individual edition;
- elements of independent research, calculations performed on a computer (elements of scientific novelty for a master's thesis);
- an analysis of the researched problem within the framework of the base enterprise sufficient to justify proposals;

Upon completion of the pre-diploma practice, higher education seeker submits to the department supervisor a report on an individual task in the form of proposals for improving the logistics activities of the enterprise, a complex of developments with the use of computer technologies proposed in the study.

As a result of the pre-diploma practice, higher education seekers must:

know:

- principles of self-organization when setting and solving logistical problems;
- methods of collecting and analyzing statistical data, forecasting methods, models and methods of making management decisions on the organization of transportation, management of material resource stocks and optimization of the use of logistics enterprise resources;
- packages of application programs and information technologies that can be used to forecast logistics activities and optimize the parameters of the logistics system;



Document	QMS NAU
Code	TP 19.05-01-2023

page 6 of 17

be able to:

- set and systematically analyze tasks in the field of management of the logistics system of the enterprise;
- assess the risks of innovative solutions in logistics business processes with the involvement of a scenario approach;
- to attract means of economic, social and environmental assessment of the proposed solutions to optimize the indicators of the logistics system of the enterprise;

gain practical skills:

- to solve complex tasks and problems in the field of management of logistics business processes of the enterprise;
- to conduct research and/or implement innovations in uncertain conditions and according to the requirements of the external environment;
 - to justify management decisions using computational methods.

4. Purpose of pre-diploma practice

The goal of pre-diploma practice is integrated competence (hereinafter - IC):

- IC1. Acquiring the ability to solve complex tasks and problems in the field of logistics business process management, which involves conducting research and/or implementing innovations and is characterized by the uncertainty of conditions and requirements, which is achieved due to:
- deepening and consolidation of theoretical knowledge and acquisition of necessary practical skills and work experience by the student of higher education in the organization of work on the analysis of logistic business processes and the introduction of means of their improvement;
- consolidation of the methods of management of logistics systems and the decomposition of the relevant tasks by the student of higher education;
- mastering modern software for management and optimization of logistics business processes;
- acquisition of professional skills and abilities to form conclusions regarding the shortcomings of the current state and prospects of the logistics system with the formation of ways to improve the situation.

5. General competencies acquired by a higher education seeker as a result of pre-diploma practice

As a result of the pre-diploma practice, higher education seeker must acquire the following general competencies (hereinafter referred to as the GC):

- GC1. Ability to conduct research on appropriate level.
- GC2. Ability to communicate with representatives of other professional groups of different levels (with experts from other branches of knowledge/types of economic activity).
- GC3. Possession of the skills in using modern information and communication technologies.



QMS NAU					
TP 19.05-01-2023					
nage 7 of 17					

GC4. Ability to motivate teams and individuals to move towards a common systemic goal.

GC5. Ability to act on the basis of moral considerations (motives).

GC6. Ability to generate new ideas (creativity).

GC7. Ability for abstract thinking, analysis and synthesis.

GC8. Ability to form conclusions and recommendations based on research results, to calculate the effectiveness of scientific research.

GC9. Ability to organize business contacts with other enterprises and the external environment.

GC10. Ability to make decisions in complex and unpredictable conditions, requiring the use of new logistical approaches.

GC11. Ability to make managerial decisions under conditions of uncertainty and risk.

6. Professional competences acquired by a higher education seeker as a result of pre-diploma practice

As a result of the pre-diploma practice, higher education seeker must acquire the following **professional competencies** (hereinafter referred to as the PC):

- PC1. The ability to select and use the concepts, methods and tools of management, including in accordance with defined goals and international standards for supply chain management.
- PC2. The ability to establish values, vision, mission, goals and criteria by which the organization determines further development directions, develop and implement appropriate strategies and plans.
 - PC3. Ability for self-development, lifelong learning and effective self-management.
 - PC4. The ability to effectively use and develop the resources of the organization.
- PC5. Ability to create and organize effective communications in the management process.
- PC6. The ability to form leadership qualities and show them in the process of managing people.
 - PC7. The ability to develop, manage, take initiative and entrepreneurship.
 - PC8. Ability to use psychological technologies to work with personnel.
- PC9. Ability to analyze and structure the problems of the organization, make effective management decisions and ensure their implementation.
 - PC10. Ability to manage an organization and its development.
- PC11. Ability to identify ways and sources of funding, conduct economic assessments and analyze social costs and benefits.
 - PC12. Ability to design and maintain logistics systems management systems.
- PC13. Ability to determine the capacity and evaluate the effectiveness of the logistics system.
- PC14. Ability to design supply chains, align supply chain strategy with enterprise business strategy.



Document	QMS NAU					
Code	TP 19.05-01-2023					
page 8 of 17						

PC15. Ability to choose methods and tools for analysing and processing data in logistics.

PC16. Ability to do business intelligence and process large databases to improve supply chains (networks).

PC17. Ability to manage risks in the functional areas of logistics and supply chains, develop measures to prevent risk situations, implement international supply chain security standards.

PC18. Ability to make innovative decisions to optimize business processes.

7. Organization of pre-diploma practice

Organizational, educational and methodical organization of the pre-diploma practice is carried out by the Logistics Department, which is responsible for the turn-out of specialists of this profile and appoints supervisors of pre-diploma practice from the University.

The general organization of pre-diploma practice and control over its implementation is carried out by the University's educational department.

Higher education seekers are sent to the practice by Rector's order, which is submitted by the dean of the faculty no later than one month before the start of practice.

Higher education seekers are guided by the lecturer's staff of the department, who take a direct part in the educational process in which the practice is conducted.

Current control is carried out through the provision of written reports by higher education seekers on the implementation of current tasks at different stages of practice.

Final control. The Report of practice is defended by higher education seekers (with a differentiated assessment) in a commission appointed by the Head of the Department. The commission consists of Practice Supervisor from the University and, if possible, from the practice base, as well as teachers of the department who taught disciplines in the practice program.

The duties of higher education seekers the Practice Supervisor from the University are reflected in Section 4 of the Regulations on the organization of Practice for higher education seekers of the National Aviation University QMS NAU P 03.01(20)-02-2021.

8. Thematic plan of Pre-diploma practice

In order for higher education seekers to acquire the skills and abilities of independent professional activity during practice, practice managers develop individual tasks that should activate creative thinking, increase initiative and the ability to make decisions independently. Individual tasks should be focused on finding economically feasible ways to improve the performance indicators of the enterprise's logistics system.

Individual tasks of higher education seekers are aimed at:

- determination of the theoretical principles of management of the logistics system of the enterprise;
 - an overview of the main logistics business processes of the practice object;
- carrying out a comprehensive analysis of all "problem" areas of the logistics business processes of the object of practice;



Document	QMS NAU					
Code	TP 19.05-01-2023					
nage 9 of 17						

- development of proposals for improving the indicators of the enterprise's logistics system.

Completion of individual tasks higher education seekers activate their creative thinking, increases initiative and the ability to analyze and summarize work results, and makes pre-diploma practice concrete and aimed at writing a master's qualification thesis.

The content of individual tasks is specified and clarified by the supervisors of the practice from the university during its completion.

The duration of practice is 225 hours. During pre-diploma practice, higher education seekers work according to the schedule adopted for higher education seekers, which is established in the higher educational institution.

9. Results of Pre-diploma practice

9.1. Learning outcomes of Pre-diploma practice makes it possible to achieve

As a result of passing Pre-diploma practice, the higher education seekers must achieve the following program learning outcomes (hereinafter referred to as PLO):

- PLO1. Think critically, select and use the necessary scientific, methodological and analytical tools for managing in unpredictable conditions.
 - PLO2. Identify problems in the organization and justify solutions.
 - PLO3. Design effective management systems for organizations.
 - PLO4. Justify and manage projects, create entrepreneurial ideas.
 - PLO5. Plan the activities of the organization in a strategic and tactical context.
- PLO6. Have the skills to make, justify and ensure management decisions in unpredictable conditions, taking into account the requirements of the current legislation, ethical considerations and social responsibility.
- PLO7. Organize and implement effective communications within the team, with representatives of different professional groups and in an international context.
- PLO8. Use specialized software and information systems to solve the problems of managing an organization.
- PLO9. Be able to communicate in professional and scientific circles in the state and foreign languages.
- PLO10. Demonstrate leadership skills and the ability to work in a team, interact with people, influence their behavior to solve professional problems.
 - PLO11. Provide personal professional development and personal time planning.
- PLO12. Be able to delegate authority and leadership of the organization (department);
- PLO13. Be able to plan and implement information, methodological, material, financial and personnel support of the organization (subdivision).
- PLO14. Demonstrate in-depth knowledge of the essential properties of modern logistics concepts and structural features of the formation of logistics systems, patterns design, operation and development of logistics systems.



Document QMS NAU
Code TP 19.05-01-2023

page 10 of 17

- PLO15. Manage financial flows in logistics systems, optimize logistics costs and develop a budget for logistics activities.
- PLO16. Use information technologies and systems to monitor and optimize logistics processes and systems based on the processing of large databases.
- PLO17. Use the methodological tools of business intelligence when making management decisions.
- PLO18. Use specialized conceptual knowledge that serves as the basis for original thinking and innovative activities, in particular in the context of research work.
- PLO19. Be able to use methodological tools to justify strategic decisions on managing logistics business processes and building perfect supply chains.

9.2. Information on the procedure for summarizing the Pre-diploma practice

After the end of the pre-diploma practice period, higher education applicants report to the Logistics Department on the implementation of the practice program. The general form of such reporting is the submission of a written report.

9.3. Form of Reporting

The Report on pre-diploma practice should reflect the results of the study of the Program issues (their status over the last three years at least), and include conclusions and recommendations, copies of the documents and their decisions. The Report should have clear construction, logical consistency, compelling reasoning, evidence of conclusions and validity of recommendations.

The general form of reporting is the submission of a written report with a positive mark from the head of the practice base. The report is a systematized and consistent description of all processes and illuminates all other issues provided for by the practice program.

The report is prepared in the form of a consultative project, which should reflect all aspects of the higher education seeker's activities at the place of practice and should be structured as follows:

- *introduction* (indicates the purpose, object, subject and tasks of pre-diploma practice), 1-2 pages;
- analytical part (analytical study of the general activity of the enterprise, production and financial indicators of activity, comprehensive analysis of the organization of logistics business processes and identification of "problematic" areas of the enterprise's logistics business processes), 25-30 pages;
- *project part* (identification of the main directions and prospects for solving the problem chosen for research, justification of the feasibility of project proposals and calculation of their economic efficiency), 10-15 pages.
- conclusions and recommendations (summing up through the development of proposals for improving the enterprise's logistics activities and improving the performance indicators of the enterprise's logistics system), 2-3 pages.
 - list of sources of information used when writing a report on pre-diploma practice;
 - appendices (if available).



Document QMS NAU
Code TP 19.05-01-2023

page 11 of 17

The report should have a title page and content, conclusions, proposals and appendices (if necessary).

The total volume of the report is 30-40 pages of A4 format. The text should be written on one page of the sheet, leaving a margin of 3 cm on the left, 1 cm on the right, 2 cm on the top, and 2 cm on the bottom. The display of the text on the page should be aligned across the width of the document. The text of the report should have one and a half line spacing, font – Times New Roman, size -14 pt.

The practice report is checked and approved by its supervisors from the university and returned to the higher education seeker for preparation for the defense.

During the defense of the report, the higher education seeker must describe the personally performed work, show knowledge of the analysis of logistics business processes, propose and prove the validity and feasibility of his proposals for improving their existing state.

When evaluating the results of the work of a higher education seeker, the commission takes into account the content of the report and the course of its defense.

The results of the pre-diploma practice are discussed at the meeting of the Logistics Department after its completion.

After the defense, the teacher's report is kept at the Logistics Department for three years, and the awardees' reports for one year.

10. List of references

- 1. Alan Harrison, Heather Skipworth, Remko I. van Hoek, James Aitken (2019). Logistics Management and Strategy. Pearson UK. 496 p.
- 2. Cluster Policy of Innovative Development of the National Economy: Integration and Infrastructure Aspects: collective monograph / under the editorship of professor S. Smerichevska. Poznań: Wydawnictwo naukowe WSPIA, 2020. 380 p.
- 3. Conceptual principles, methods and models of greening logistics activities. Monogra /Gritsenko S., Savchenko L., Матвеєв В.В., ect.. Monograph. Primedia eLaunch, Boston, USA, 2023. 218 р.
- 4. Donald Bowersox, David Closs and M. Bixby Cooper (2020) Supply Chain Logistics Management, 5th Edition. McGraw Hill. 480 p.
- 5. Fedorov E.. Smerichevska S., Nechyporenko O., Utkina T., Remyha Yu. (2022) Intellectualization of Lean Production Logistic Technology Based on Fuzzy Expert System and Multiagent Metaheuristics. 3rd International Conference. Communication and Intelligent Systems Proceedings of ICCIS 2021. Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems. Volume 461. P.447-462. URL: https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-981-19-2130-8_36
- 6. Savchenko L., Bugayko D., Smerichevska S. Envirmental and Social Responsibility in Supply Chains. Economics, management and administration in the coordinates of sustainable development: Scientific monograph edited by S. Smerichevskyi, T. Kosova. Riga, Latvia: Baltija Publishing, 2021. 716 p. P.596-616. ISBN: 978-9934-26-157-2. URL: https://bit.ly/3xZxHsN



Document QMS NAU
Code TP 19.05-01-2023

page 12 of 17

- 7. Smerichevska S., Miahkykh I., Yeletskykh S., Borysova S., Bryzhnychenko V. Financial and Economic Narratives for Evalution of Innovative Potential of Enterprises. *Naukovyi Visnyk Natsionalnoho Hirnychoho Universytetu*, 2022, № 1 (187), P.145-152. ISSN 2071-2227, E-ISSN 2223-2362. URL: https://doi.org/10.33271/nvngu/2022-1/145
- 8. Smerichevskyi S., Kryvovyazyuk I., Smerichevska S., Tsymbalistova O., Kharchenko M., Yudenko E. Development of the Logistical Support Mechanism for the Airline's Innovation activity on the Market of Air Transport Services. *International Journal of Management (IJM)*. Volume 11, Issue 6, (June 2020), pp. 1482-1492. DOI: 10.34218/IJM.11.6.2020.135. https://bit.ly/3htORGo
- 9. Tan Miller, Matthew J. Liberatore (2020). Logistics Management: An Analytics-Based Approach. Business Expert Press. 186 p.
- 10. Yaremovich P., Mykhailenko D., Smerichevska S., Andrushkevych Z., Tytykalo V. Formation of the Scientific Paradigm of the Transformation of Potentialforming Space and Logistics Platforms of the Regional Economy. IJCSNS International Journal of Computer Science and Network Security, VOL.21 No.10, October 2021. P.288-294. URL: https://doi.org/10.22937/IJCSNS.2021.21.10.41
- 11. Блага Н. В. Управління проєктами : навч. посібник. Львів : Львівський державний університет внутрішніх справ, 2021. 152 с. URL: http://dspace.lvduvs.edu.ua/bitstream/1234567890/3870/1/блага%20управління%20проє ктами.pdf
- 12. Бланк С., Дорф. Б. Священна книга стартапера. Як збудувати успішну компанію. К.: Наш формат, 2019. 512 с.
- 13. Бізнес-планування підприємницької діяльності : навч. посіб. /3. С. Варналій, Т. Г. Васильців, Р. Л. Лупак, Р. Р. Білик. Чернівці : Технодрук, 2019. 264 с.
- 14. Гриценко С.І. Розвиток регіонів України з урахуванням конкурентних переваг раціонального використання ресурсів в межах транспортно-логістичних кластері. Strategic Management: Global Trends and National Peculiarities. Collective monograph. Poland: Publishing House «Baltija Publishing», 2019. 712 р.
- 15. Гупта С. Цифрова стратегія. Посібник із переосмислення бізнесу. К.: Вид. група КМ-БУКС, 2020. 320 с.
- 16. Інноваційна логістика: концепції, моделі, механізми: [монографія] / за наук.ред. М. Ю. Григорак та Л. В. Савченко. Київ: Логос, 2015. 548 с.
- 17. Кісіль Р. Як війна в Україні змінює світову логістику. 2022. URL: https://www.epravda.com.ua/columns/2022/06/24/688538/
- 18. Кулик В.А., Григорак М.Ю., Костюченко Л.В. Логістичний менеджмент: навч. посібник / К.: НАУ, 2012. 260 с.
- 19. Логістика та управління ланцюгами поставок : підручник / Є. В. Крикавський, О. А. Похильченко, М. Фертч. Львів : Львівська політехніка, 2020. 848 с. (Світ маркетингу і логістики ; вип. 14).
- 20. Логістичний менеджмент: навчально-методичний комплекс з дисципліни: навчальний посібник для студентів другого (магістерського) рівня спеціальності 073



Document QMS NAU
Code TP 19.05-01-2023

page 13 of 17

«Менеджмент» / уклад.: С.В.Смерічевська. Київ: КПІ ім. Ігоря Сікорського, 2022. 104 с. URL: https://ela.kpi.ua/bitstream/123456789/49987/1/Logist_man.pdf

- 21. Маркетинг і логістика: концептуальні основи та стратегічні рішення. Навчальний посібник в схемах і таблицях / За заг. ред. С.В. Смерічевської. Львів: «Магнолія-2006», 2019. 552 с. URL: http://er.nau.edu.ua/handle/NAU/38702.
- 22. Смерічевська С. В. Формування освітньо-інноваційного потенціалу логістизації національної економіки : стратегічні імперативи [монографія] . Херсон: ТОВ Видавничий дім «Гельветика», 2015. 320 с. URL : https://bit.ly/3CeKSpj
- 23. Смерічевська С. В., Маркітан О. І. Методика оцінки конкурентоспроможності логістичної системи підприємства машинобудівної галузі. Актуальні проблеми економіки та управління. Збірник наук.праць молодих вчених. К.: КПІ ім.І.Сікорського. Випуск 13, 2019. URL. http://ape.fmm.kpi.ua/article/view/168670/168457
- 24. Смерічевська С. В., Криворучко Г.О. Теоретико-методичні основи ефективного управління логістичними процесами на підприємстві. Актуальні проблеми економіки та управління. Збірник наук.праць молодих вчених. К.: КПІ ім. І.Сікорського. Випуск 13, 2019. URL. http://ape.fmm.kpi.ua/article/view/170156/169893
- 25. Смерічевська С. В., Науменко О. П. Логістичні ризики в процесі стратегічного управління ланцюгами поставок авіапослуг і шляхи їх мінімізації. International Scientific Conference Innovative Potential of Socio-Economic Systems: the Challenges of the Global World, Part II, December 22th, 2017. Lisbon, Portugal. Baltija Publishing. 128 pages. P.53-56
- 26. Смерічевська С. В., Феоктистова Н.О. Концепція реверсивної логістики : сутність і практика застосування на виробничих підприємствах в умовах циркулярної економіки. Dynamics of the development of world science. The 9 th International scientific and practical conference (May 13-15, 2020) Perfect Publishing, Vancouver, Canada. 2020. P.952-958. URL: http://bit.ly/3rbzqpx
- 27. Проєктування об'єктів логістичної інфраструктури: навчально-методичний комплекс з дисципліни: навчальний посібник для студентів другого (магістерського) рівня спеціальності 073 «Менеджмент» / уклад.: С.В. Смерічевська. Київ: КПІ ім. Ігоря Сікорського, 2022. 76 с. URL: https://ela.kpi.ua/handle/123456789/50039
 - 28. Статистика України: науковий журнал. URL: www.ukrstat.gov.ua
 - 29. Статистична звітність емітентів України. URL: www.smida.gov.ua/db/emitent

11. Form of assessment of the Pre-diploma practice in accordance with the Regulations on the Assessment Rating System

Assessment Rating System (ASR) the results of practice is an integral part of its program

The purpose of ASR is to determine the student's level of knowledge, skills and competences and quality of performance, according to the practice program, individual tasks in grades on a 100-grade scale, National Scale grades and ECTS scale grades.



Document QMS NAU
Code TP 19.05-01-2023

page 14 of 17

Practice content is structured in a one module. Grading of different kinds of training activities performed by a student is done in accordance with Table 1.

Table 1 Grading of different kinds of training activities on Pre-diploma practice

No.	Kind of activities	Max Grade
	Module № 1. Pre-diploma practice	
1	Instruction on labor protection under the personal signature of higher education seeker	5
2	Definition of theoretical principles of enterprise management based on logistics	10
3	General analysis of the enterprise and its financial and production indicators	10
4	Conducting a comprehensive analysis of all problem areas of logistics business processes. Determination of the causes of violations in work.	25
5	Development of proposals for improving logistics activities	20
6	Preparation of a report and documentation on practice	10
7	Carrying out Module Test (defense of Pre-diploma practice Report)	20
	Total	100

The Graded Test Grade is entered in an Examination Register, a student's record book and academic card, e.g.: 92/Ex/A, 87/Good/B, 79/Good/C, 68/Sat/D, 65/Sat./E, etc.

The Total Grade on Pre-diploma practice corresponds to the Graded Test Grade.

The Total Grade on Pre-diploma practice is entered into Diploma Supplement.

Retake of a positive Graded Test Grade on Pre-diploma practice in order to increase it is not allowed.



Document Code QMS NAU TP 19.05-01-2023

page 15 of 17

Appendix A

NATIONAL AVIATION UNIVERSITY FACULTY OF TRANSPORT, MANAGEMENT AND LOGISTICS Logistics Department

REPORT

ON PRE-DIPLOMA PRACTICE

Higher education seeker of 2th year group _	
Academic Degree "Master"	
Specialty 073 "Management"	
Educational Professional Program "Logistic	es"
(Full name)	
Pre-diploma Practice Supervisors:	
From the training base:	
From the Logistics department:	
	I certify that the report on pre-diploma practice does not contain borrowings from the works of other authors without appropriate references
	Higher education seeker



Document
Code

QMS NAU TP 19.05-01-2023

page 16 of 17

(F03.02-01)

SHEET OF DELIVERY OF DOCUMENT

№ of a copy	Where it was delivered (subdivision)	Date of delivery	Full name of a recipient	Signature of a resipient	Note

(F 03.02-02)

SHEET OF ACQUAINTANCE WITH THE DOCUMENT

	SHEET OF ACQUAINTANCE WITH THE DOCUMENT						
№	Full mane	Signature of a person who was acquainted	Date	Note			



Document Code QMS NAU TP 19.05-01-2023

page 17 of 17

(F03.02-04)

SHEET OF REGISTRATION OF REVISIONS

№	Full mane	Date of revision	Signature	Conclusion about adequacy
		_		_

 $\overline{(F 03.02-03)}$

SHEET OF ACCOUNT OF CHANGES

№ of change	№ letter (page)				Signature of a person who	Date of	Date of introduction
	changed	replaced	new	cancelled	made the changes	making amendments	o.f

 $\Phi 03.02 - 32$

SHEET OF AGREEING CHANGES

	Signature	Full mane	Position held	Date
Developer				
Agreed				